
BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

 Meeting: Thursday, 16th December, 2021 
     at 2.00 pm (Banqueting Hall) 

 
 

A G E N D A 
PART ONE 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members.   
 

 

2.   Urgent Items 
 
To deal with any items which the Chair considers to be of an urgent 
nature.  
 

 

3.   Delegations 
 
To receive notice from Members who may wish to move any 
delegated matter non-delegated and which will be decided by a 
majority of Members present and voting at the meeting. 
 

 

4.   Admission of Public and Press 
 
To consider whether the public and press should be excluded from 
the meeting during consideration of any of the items on the agenda. 
 

 

5.   Declarations of Interest 
 
To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda.  
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests or other registrable interests which have not already been 
declared in the Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal 
offence not to declare a disclosable pecuniary interest either in the 
Register or at the meeting). 
 
Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such 
disclosable pecuniary interests which they have already declared in 
the Register,  as well as any other registrable or other interests.   
 

 

6.   Confirmation of Minutes 
 
To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 2nd December,  2021. 
 
 

5 - 6 



 

FOR DECISION  
 

 

(D) 7.   Work Programme Update   
 
To consider the reviews undertaken by the work groups and 
determine whether further action is required. 
 

7 - 10 

() 8.   Future Management Arrangements of Piel Island   
 
To receive the report and consider and agree the recommendations 
to Executive Committee. 
 

11 - 14 

(D) 9.   Review of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee's Work Planning 
Process   
 
To consider adopting the procedure set out in the report for future 
work programming. 
 

15 - 20 

NOTE  (D) – Delegated 
  (R) – For Referral to Council 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Membership of Committee 
 
Councillors Mcleavy (Chairman) 

Cassidy (Vice-Chair) 
Gawne 
Johnston 
W. McClure 
McEwan 
Morgan 
Preston 
Robson 
C. Thomson 
M. A. Thomson 
Worthington 
 

 
For queries regarding this agenda, please contact: 
 Katie Pepper 

Democratic Services 
Officer 
01229 876314 
kpepper@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 
Published: Wednesday, 8 December 2021 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



BOROUGH OF BARROW IN FURNESS 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
      Meeting: Thursday 2nd December, 2021 
      at 2.00 pm.  (Banqueting Hall). 
 
PRESENT:- Councillors Cassidy (Vice-Chairman), Assouad, McEwan and C. Thomson. 
 
Officers Present:- Jon Huck (Democratic Services Manager) and Katie Pepper 
(Democratic and Electoral Services Officer) 
 
26 – Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Member 
 
Apologies for absence had been submitted from Councillors McLeavy, Gawne, 
McClure, Morgan, Robson, A. Thomson and Worthington. 
 
Councillor Assouad had attended as a substitute for Councillor Morgan. 
 
27 – Minutes 
 
The Minutes of the meeting held on 28th October, 2021 were taken as read and 
confirmed. 
 
28 – Public Participation 
 
RESOLVED:- To note that no questions, representations, deputations or petitions had 
been received in respect of the meeting. 
 
29 – Adjournment of Meeting 
 
It was moved by Councillor Cassidy and seconded by Councillor C. Thomson that the 
meeting be adjourned.  
 
RESOLVED:- To agree that the meeting be adjourned. 
 
THE MEETING WAS ADJOURNED AT 2.05 PM. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

16 December 2021 

Work Programme Update 

 
 

Report from:   Democratic Services Manager 

Report Author:  Paula Westwood 

Wards:    All Wards 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  Work Groups have been established to review the topics identified in the 

2021/2022 Work Programme.  A summary of the progress made in respect of each 

topic is detailed below. 

 

2.0    Recommendation  

 

2.1 Members should consider the reviews undertaken by the Work Groups and 

determine whether further action is required. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 Flooding on Walney Promenade 

 

 At the previous meeting in October 2021, representatives from United Utilities had 

addressed the Committee and provided an update on the plans being made for 

the sewer network to prevent flooding on Walney Promenade.  It was anticipated 

that the works could be completed within a 12-18 month timeframe and United 

Utilities had confirmed that they would be happy to provide regular updates to the 

Committee as appropriate. 

 

3.2 Discretionary Housing Fund and Supported Housing Payments 

 

 The Work Group had met on 9th November with the Revenues and Benefits 

Service Manager who had provided lots of information to the Group regarding the 

number of people in receipt of discretionary housing and supported housing 

payments, as well as the number of claims and the number of claims refused and 

for what reason. 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 7



 The Work Group wished to undertake a ‘Deep Dive’ into the support available to 

vulnerable residents in HMOs and supported housing accommodation, looking at 

both the needs of the residents as well as the financial aspect to the Council. 

 

3.3 Arrangements for the Management of Piel Island 

 

 The Work Group had met with the Director of People and Place on 2nd November.  

Information had been shared regarding activities which had taken place over the 

Summer season, along with lessons learned to enable planning for the future more 

effectively.  

 

A more detailed report from the Director of People and Place is covered under a 

separate agenda item. 

 

 A series of regular meetings have been set up for the Work Group to meet with 

the Director of People and Place through to March, 2022. 

 

3.4 Memorial Benches 

 

 The draft Policy for Memorial Benches had been reviewed at the previous meeting 

prior to being approved at Executive Committee.  Executive Committee had 

agreed at their meeting on 10th November, 2021 to adopt the policy with immediate 

effect.  This review has now concluded. 

 

3.5 Impact of Covid-19 Going Forward 

 

 The Work Group had met on 11th November.  Information had been noted 

including:- 

 

 The number of positive cases was in slow decline at around 430 cases per 

100,000 population; 

 Copeland had the highest number of cases in the County; 

 Cases remained high in Schools with the infection rate recorded from that 

cohort being twice that of the rest of the population; 

 The vaccination programme including first and second doses, as well as 

boosters and first doses for the 12-15 year old cohort were continuing; 

 There was vaccine hesitancy amongst the 12-15 year old cohort, which had 

been thought to be from fake news on social media.  Trained professionals 

would be liaising with Schools to provide re-assurance. 

 

The Work Group had raised concerns regarding the wearing of face masks no 

longer being mandatory, especially as Winter was approaching and people would 

be gathering for festive events in large crowds.  The Work Group had agreed to 

approach the Council’s media team to produce a news release encouraging mask 

wearing at large events locally to help to reduce the spread of the virus. 

 

 

Page 8

Agenda Item 7



4.0 Consultation  

 We do not need to undertake a consultation at this stage. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 Additional information is required before we can consider alternative options. 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 The Scrutiny Work Programme covers all of the Council’s priorities. 

 

7.0 Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 This is an update report and there are no implications at this stage. 

 

Legal  

7.1.2 This is an update report and there are no implications at this stage. 

 

Equality and Diversity  

7.2 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  
 

No – This is an update report and there are no implications at this stage. 
 
Risk 

 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

N/A N/A N/A 

Contact Officers  

Paula Westwood Scrutiny and Democratic Services Team Leader 

pwestwood@barrowbc.gov.uk  

 

 

Appendices Attached to this Report  

 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

N/A N/A 

 

Background Documents Available 

 

Name of Background document  Where it is available  

N/A N/A 

  

Page 9

Agenda Item 7

mailto:pwestwood@barrowbc.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 16 December 2021 

Executive Committee – 12 January 2022 

Future Management Arrangements of Piel Island 

 
 

 

1.0 Summary and Conclusions  

 

1.1.1 This report brings forward an update on Piel Island, incorporating work undertaken by 

the Overview and Scrutiny Working Group and asks Executive Committee to consider 

and agree the future management arrangements for Piel Island.   

 

2.0 Recommendation  

 

2.1.1 Overview and Scrutiny Committee is asked to receive the report and consider and 
agree the following recommendations to Executive Committee: 
 
Executive Committee is asked to consider the following recommendations: 

 
(i) Agree to the proposed management arrangements as set out in the report 

and delegate authority to the Director of People and Place, in consultation 

with the Chair of Executive Committee, to undertake the procurement 

process and award the new contract.   

 

(ii) Note their appreciation for the work that officers put into getting the Ship 

Inn ready to be re-opened this season at very short notice 

 

(iii) Note the lessons learnt from the partnership approach and thank the Piel 

Island Pub Company for their contribution 

 

(iv) Note that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee Piel Island Working Group 

will continue to receive progress updates 

 

3.0 Background and Current Position 

 

3.1 Barrow BC are the custodian of Piel Island and until late May 2021, the management of 

Piel Island including running the Ship Inn, maintaining the toilet block and the Island 

grounds was undertaken by the holders of a lease from the Council.  The leaseholders 

decided before the end of their lease that they wished to terminate the arrangement.  

 

   

Report from:   Director of People and Place 

Report Author:  Director of People and Place 

Wards:    All Wards- located in Roosegate  

Page 11

Agenda Item 8



3.2 The Council at the time had secured some resources to support its climate change 

pledge to be carbon neutral by 2037.  Piel Island was seen as a great asset that could 

benefit from some of this resource and an area that we could really promote to residents 

and visitors as a great place to visit.  Therefore, the Council accepted the leaseholders 

decision and formally concluded the early termination of the lease in late May 2021. 

 

3.3 Ensuring that Piel Island could be shown to its best advantage, Barrow BC needed to 

fully understand its full potential for the future.  To enable the Ship Inn to re-open after 

a period of closure and early termination of the lease took considerable effort from a 

team of Council officers who volunteered to go over to Piel Island and repaint it, organise 

deep cleaning and deal with a range of other issues.  This was done within a couple of 

weeks to then enable us to show prospective interested partners around the premises.   

 

3.4 For this last season and in the light of the impact of Covid, a pilot partnership approach 

was put into place with a provider to truly understand what a longer term management 

arrangement might look like to make the best of Piel Island for all. This provider was a 

local company that had experience in running pubs and they subsequently established 

the Piel Island Pub Company.  The arrangement was that it would be June to September 

2021 and be open book accounting to understand the costs and income from Piel Island. 

 

3.5 Overview and Scrutiny Committee have been looking at the arrangements for the 

management of Piel Island as part of their work programme for the year. The Overview 

and Scrutiny working group have concluded that the lessons learnt from this season are 

as follows: 

 Piel Island is a unique place and any operator needs to appreciate the 

constraints offered by power, weather, access and its location within an 

area of Site of Special Scientific Interest. 

 Visitors to Piel Island are short stay and want a basic meal and drink 

 Camping and paying a small fee was popular 

 The relationship with the ferry operator and the management 

arrangements for Piel Island is really important 

 Alternative access arrangements off the Island besides the ferry need to 

be in place 

 More outside seating is needed to facilitate visitors 

 The community ownership of Piel Island and its local appeal and natural 

habitat is really important 

 There were no incidents of anti-social behaviour reported, which was 

contrary to perception.   

 Any operator needs to manage and maintain the island including 

maintenance of the Ship Inn, grounds maintenance of the surrounding 

area and management of camping and the toilet and shower block (except 

for external urgent repairs to the buildings and jetty maintenance) and its 

assets to a standard that the Council expects 

 All aspects of the Island except for external urgent repairs to the buildings 

and jetty maintenance to be the responsibility of the operator 

 Emergency planning for incidents with agencies is an essential part of any 

future management arrangements 

 There is potential for events and Piel Island is an essential element of any 

destination marketing.  Any operator would need a formal relationship with 

the Council to enable this. 

 

Page 12

Agenda Item 8



 Communication about Piel Island and whether buildings are open and 

food and drink are being served is the responsibility of the operator 

 Any operator needed experience in operating a licenced premises and 

with access to staff, financial sustainability and be prepared to open for a 

short period of the year whilst retaining responsibility for the premises and 

the Island all year round.  

3.6 The Overview and Scrutiny Working Group felt that the partnership arrangements had 

demonstrated that despite challenging circumstances, Piel Island and its facilities were 

made available as often as possible for visitors.  The options for future management 

arrangements were discussed by the group.  The level of resource and capacity of 

officers meant that self delivery of Piel Island was prohibitive.  Also, Barrow Forward 

was not yet established and did not have the necessary infrastructure to take on the 

management of Piel Island.   

3.7 Members felt that an open and transparent procurement for a suitably experienced 

operator should take place.  The above lessons learnt should inform the service 

specification and that a media campaign could run alongside the procurement process 

to encourage people to register to submit an interest through the appropriate channel.  

The emphasis would be on a long term 10 year lease with an annual review of 

performance and a rental charge that would be subject to review over the time period.  

Therefore, the preferred option was to gain approval from Executive Committee to this 

approach, advertise the opportunity in January 2021 for a start date in early March 2021.   

3.8 As part of Low Carbon Barrow, a feasibility piece of work is underway to explore 

alternative energy sources.  This is exploring solar PV for the roof of the Ship Inn and 

the toilet block as examples.  The existing toilet block is also going to be demolished 

and replaced.  A service specification for a design and build for a new eco-friendly block 

is underway.  The opportunities for what is the art of the possible are underway with 

planning due to the location of the island.   

3.9 Members are asked to consider the report and the recommendations to Executive 

Committee.   

4 Consultation  

4.1 The lessons learnt have come from both the partnership outcomes with Piel Island Pub 
Company, officers and ward members who have all fed their own views and those from 
the community into the process to shape future arrangements.  The media campaign to 
encourage operators to apply for this opportunity will be sensitively managed to ensure 
that the sense of community ownership will remain and that the right calibre of operator 
is attracted.   

 
5.0 Alternative Options  

5.1 Options for alternative future management arrangements have been considered above.  
Alternatively, the Council could choose to close the Ship Inn, which would cause 
reputational damage and withdraw a service from residents and visitors.  The option in 
the report is considered to be the most appropriate at this time to take forward the future 
management arrangements for the island.     

 
6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 Our environment is enhanced, protected and celebrated.  Our Borough is seen as a 
destination of choice for leisure, culture and sport.  

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 8



7.0 Implications  

7.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 A suitable rent will be set as part of the preparation of the service specification and aside 

from any emergency structural repairs all other costs will be the responsibility of the 

operator.  Emergency structural repairs would remain the responsibility of the Council 

unless there was intentional damage caused by the operator.  Emergency structural 

repairs are funded from the Renewals Reserve. 

 

7.1.2 The rent review arrangements will be specified with clear evidence requirements and 

the process to be observed each year; this will include the triggers for any subsequent 

actions in terms of the rent level. 

 

7.1.3 Officer time will be employed in creating the specification, carry out the procurement, 

and carrying out the annual review alongside the normal functions of the Council as 

landlord.  

 

7.2 Legal  

 

7.2.1 There are no issues to raise in this report.  Future procurement should be in compliance 

with the Councils’ financial regulations and contract standing orders, and contracts will 

be drawn up as appropriate.   

 

7.3 Equality and Diversity  

7.3.1 An Equality Impact Assessment is not required for this report.   

7.4 Risk 

7.4.1 That there are no suitable operators, but various individuals and organisations have 

already approached the Council.  The mitigation of the risk is that a media campaign 

will also focus on driving interest to the service specification where the detail and 

expectations will be provided.  

 

Contact Officers  

Steph Cordon:  Director of People and Place 

scordon@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 

Sandra Baines, Head of Visitor Economy and Culture 

 

 

 

Page 14

Agenda Item 8

mailto:scordon@barrowbc.gov.uk


PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

16 December 2021 

Review of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s Work 

Planning Process 

 
 

Report from:   Democratic Services Manager 

Report Author:  Paula Westwood 

Wards:    (All Wards) 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  An efficient and effective Overview & Scrutiny Committee work planning process 

will ensure that maximum value can be made of the Council’s resources and that 

the outcome of the work will be closely linked to Council Plan priorities. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 It is recommended that Overview and Scrutiny Committee adopts the 

procedure as set out in the report for its future work programming. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee has the power to review or scrutinise 

decisions made, or actions taken, in accordance with the discharge of any of the 

Council’s functions.   It also has power to make recommendations to the Council 

or Executive Committee, and to consider any matters which affects the Council’s 

area or its communities.  The Committee also plays an important role in policy 

development and review. 

 

3.2 As part of these responsibilities, the Overview and Scrutiny Committee sets an 

annual Work Programme.  The Work Programme ensures that the Committee is 

able to focus on those areas where it is likely to add the most value.   It can do 

this through its formal meetings, through one-day reviews or through the work of 

task and finish groups. 

 

3.3 This report provides a review to consider the development of future Work 

Programmes. 

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 9



3.4 Work Programme topic submissions 

 

Current Work Programmes are formulated by Scrutiny Committee Members.  

The four year Work Plan was aligned to the period of the administration.  The 

items for year one were agreed following recommendations from the Corporate 

Support Manager.  In year two the pandemic took over, with the only item from 

the original Work Plan being memorial benches.  There was no process around 

the ones put forward.  It is suggested that this could be broadened out to include 

consultation with all Councillors, Senior Officers within the Council, Parish and 

Town Council Clerks and partner organisations.  A template has been drafted for 

consideration to aid prioritisation and selection of submissions. 

 

Work Programme prioritisation 

 

3.5 A number of Councils use a work flow system (“the Work Planning Aid”) to 

prioritise submitted topics.  A suggested Work Planning Aid is attached as 

Appendix 1.   Some use a scoring matrix. 

 

3.6 The Work Planning Aid is an effective way of quickly assigning a priority to each 

of the submissions and it is therefore recommended that this be introduced as 

attached at Appendix 1 for development of future work programmes. 

 

3.7 Prioritisation is vital to ensure that there are sufficient resources to allow the work 

programme planning to take place and to ensure that the work programme is 

supported through the year.  A Local Government Information Unit article on 

“making scrutiny count” suggests that “one major scrutiny and perhaps two 

shorter reviews in the course of a year is realistic”. 

 

Timetable for the Production of the 2022/23 work programme. 

 

3.8 If Members agree the new approach then it is recommended that this be 

implemented for the 2022/23 municipal year with a proposed timetable for 

development of the new work programme as follows: 

 

3.9 Consultation on the 2022/23 programme to begin on 17th January, 2022 and run 

until 11th February, 2022. 

 

3.10 It is proposed that a meeting between the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee and members of the Council’s Senior Management 

Team be arranged for the end of February 2022.  This meeting will allow a 

preliminary prioritisation of submissions to be conducted. 

 

3.11 It is recommended that the Committee utilises a programme workshop during 

this process to allow discussion of the topics in a more informal setting.  This is 

in line with the suggestions from the Centre for Public Scrutiny and is a planning 

tool commonly used by Scrutiny Committees.  Subject to the Committee’s 

approval, a workshop would be arranged during the two weeks prior to the 

meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee scheduled on 24th March 2022. 

Page 16

Agenda Item 9



 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 The Chair and Vice-Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Members 

of the Council’s Senior Management Team have been consulted on these 

proposals. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 Not to approve the revised procedure for developing the Work Programme.  This 

is not recommended as the updated process and templates will aid the 

prioritisation and selection of submissions and make the process more 

straightforward for those suggesting topics for consideration. 

 

5.2 The Committee could choose to use a prioritisation tool other than the Work 

Planning Aid, or could opt to use no prioritisation tool at all.  This is not 

recommended as the Work Planning Aid provides a transparent and effective 

method of assessing the work programme topic submissions and is widely used 

by Council’s nationwide. 

 

5.3 Not to hold a Work Programme Setting Workshop in early March.  This is not 

recommended as the workshop will ensure that the setting of the 2022/23 Work 

Programme is a Member led process and provide an opportunity for more 

detailed discussions on each topic that might otherwise be available during the 

meeting at which the final Work Programme is considered. 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 The work of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee should link to all of the 

priorities set out within the Council Plan. 

 

7.0 Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 There are no financial, or procurement issues arising from this report.  There is a 

need to ensure that there are sufficient resources to allow the work programme 

planning to take place and to ensure the Work Programme is supported through 

the year. 

 

Legal  

7.1.2 The Committee needs to be effective in its role.  By preparing a planned work 

programme, the Committee can ensure that it has adequate time to properly 

consider those key areas where it can add greatest value.  In turn this will enable 

the Council to demonstrate that it has effective scrutiny arrangements in place. 

 

Equality and Diversity  

7.1 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  
 

No – there are no implications arising from this report. 

Page 17

Agenda Item 9



Risk 

 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

The Work Programme does 

not add value.  

 

Resources not used to 

their maximum. 

Keep under review and 

ensure a planned Work 

Programme that aligns 

with Council priorities 

and agreed criteria. 

 

 

Contact Officers  

Paula Westwood Scrutiny and Democratic Services Team Leader 

pwestwood@barrowbc.gov.uk  

 

Appendices Attached to this Report  

 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Work Planning Aid – Prioritisation Tool 

 

Background Documents Available 

 

Name of Background document  Where it is available  

1 Making scrutiny count – Local 

Government Information Unit 

 

https://lgiu.org/making-scrutiny-count/  

  

Page 18

Agenda Item 9

mailto:pwestwood@barrowbc.gov.uk
https://lgiu.org/making-scrutiny-count/


 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

WORK PLANNING AID 

 
 
 
 

Is   this   issue   strategic   and/or 
significant?                                                                              

No 
 

Yes 

 
Will scrutiny activity add value to 
the           Council’s           overall 
performance?                                                                         No 

 

Yes 
 

 

Will the scrutiny activity lead to 
effective outcomes? 

No 
 

Yes 
 

 

Will  this  duplicate  work  being 
carried out elsewhere? 

 

Yes

 

No 

 
Is  this  issue  of  concern  to  our 
partners or others? 

No 
 

Yes 
 

 

Is  this  an  issue  of  community 
concern? 

No 
 

Yes 

 
Are there adequate resources to 
do this activity well? 

No 
 

Yes 
 
 

 

Is this scrutiny activity timely? 
 

No 
 

Yes 
 
 
 
 

High Priority                                       Low Priority                                Reject 

Page 19

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Confirmation of Minutes
	7 Work Programme Update
	8 Future Management Arrangements of Piel Island
	9 Review of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee's Work Planning Process
	Appendix 1 - Work Planning Aid


